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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

\St, Mark's Church, a red brick high Victorian building located on Capitol]
Hill,\is an architectural landmark which contributes to the visual character
of the District of Columbia. Itscorner tower projects above the neighboring
late nineteenth century rowhouses and is a focal point of its block. Stand-
ing on the southeast corner of A and Third Streets the asymmetically massed
church is in scale with the adjacent residential buildings but is in strong
contrast with the large, contained mass of the Library of Congress Annex
which faces it across Third Street.

V Although constructed in two stages in 1888 and 1894, there is little
visual evidence that this building designed by T. Buckler Ghequier was built
in stages. It has a modified basilica plan with no apse. In 1894 a parish
house wing was 3dded at the southeast and in 1926-27 a wing designed by
Delos H. Smith was added to this. Today the church with additions basically
has an "L' shaped plan. A wrought and cast iron fence at the northeast en-
closes a courtyard in front of the wings and a similar fence at the west
encloses a narrow yard between the church and the sidewalk.

Ghequiers:design is very eclectic with Romanesque Revival features such as
round arched openings and simplicity of forms combined with high Victorian
Gothic characteristics of verticality and the employment of bichrome bands.
Most interesting is the architect’s handling of materials. Structural
materials are used decoratively and there is a judicious use of purely de-
corative materials such as terra cotta tiles. Particularly notable is the
interior with exposed brick walls, roof trussing and cast iron columns
carrying round arches supporting the clerestory.

The land on which St. Mark's is located slop€§ slightly. This is mani-
fested on the A Street facade where the east entrance has five steps leading
to it and the west entrance has only four. The church with full basement is
approximately 110' 5" by 58' with the north-south axis the longer one.

Bands of terra cottatiles with geometric and floral -designs are used as dee-
orative accents on both interior and exterior. There is exterior stone
trim and a molded brick watertable, :

The Third Street (west) and east facades have seven bays. On the west
facade the bay farthest south projects slightly at the aisle level and has
a gable roof which intersects the shed roof of the aisle. The typical bay is
defined by buttresses on the aisle level and by narrow pilasters on the
clerestory level., Each clerestory bay has two round-headed windows while the
aisle bay has a recessed semicircular tracery window. On the west facade the
north bay contains the heavily buttressed tower and on the east facade this
bay containing a vestibule differs from the other bays only on the aisle
level. The parish house wing is attached to the east aisle at the south so
that only four aisle bays are visible.

The square corner tower has arched entrances on both west and north fa-
cades and above its arcaded belfry with balustrade are conical tuyrrets apnd:
gablets., Its slate covered octagonal spire is divided by a band;’al' way to -
its point, which is 103 feet above ground. ;

The tower and a large tracery window in the gable end of ti
nate the A Street (north) facade. A stone Latin cross crowns |
gable. (A smaller cross is found at the apex of the south gable endk
massive pier terminated by a stone ball buttresses the east wahl 0

ie apex of the ;
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Joint Committee on Landmarks has designated St. M54R1s Church a
Category II Landmark of importance which contributes significantly to the
cultural heritage and visual beauty of the District of Columbia. Establish-
ed as a mission in 1867, St. Mark's Episcopal congregation has played an
important role in the life of the Capitol Hill area and the city for over
a century. The red-brick, High Victorian church designed in 1888 by T.
Buckler Ghequier combines Romanesque elements with Gothic verticality and
has a particularly distinguished interior with exposed brick walls and
timbered roofing.

. St. Mark's Episcopal Church began in 1867 as a mission of Christ Church,
Washlngton Parlsh\\meetlng for a time in the Sewall Belmont house at Second
Street and Constitution Avenue, N.E. 1In 1868 the mission organized as a
congregation and built a small frame chapel on Beale Terrace between Second
and Third Streets, S.E., a site now occupied by the Library of Congress
Annex. In June 1869 the mission was created as Memorial Parish within the
Diocese of Maryland. 1In 1870 the church became St. Mark's, Memorial Parish,
and finally in 1880, St. Mark's Parish.

In October 1880 St. Mark's began acquiring its present site at Third and
A Streets, S.E., by purchasing lots nine, ten and eleven fronting on Third
Street. Lot twelve was acquired some years later. The frame chapel was
moved across Third Street to lot nine in 1871. By 1888 the congregation
had prospered enough to begin construction of the present church building.

L. Buckler Chequier of Baltimore, Maryland, was the architect. The cor-
nerstone was laid on September 17, 1888, and the north end of the structure
extending as far as the present chancel, was completed and opened in time
to hold services on February 23, 1889. A passageway was built connecting
the frame chapel with the new building and the former was used for a choir
room and parish hall. In 1894 the frame chapel was finally demolished .and
the tower, nave, chancel and the west thirty feet of the parish hall were
completed.

St. Mark's flourished for many years thereafter and played a large role-
in the community and the diocese. From 1896 to 1902 it was pro-cathedral
for Bishop William Yates Satterlee, first bishop of Washington. From its
members came three bishops of the Episcopal Church--Karl Morgan Block,
California; Clarence Alfred Cole, Upper South Carolina; and William Moody,
Lexington, Kentucky.

(Continued on Form 10-300a)




Vestry minutes, variously bound.

Chew, John Hamilton. "A Sketch of St. Mark's Parish," circa 1900, unpub-
lished typescript,

Myrth, Ida. 'Chronicles of St. Mark's Parish,' unpublished typescript.

Draft nomination form prepared by G. Bowdoin Craighill, Vestryman, St.
Mark's Church ’
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NAME AND TITLE: ' Robins Brown, Architectural Historian . -~
. Nancy C. Taylor, Landmarks Historian

ORGANIZATION DATE

National Capital Planning Commission ' | Dec. 20, 1972

STREET AND NUMBER:

1325 G Street, N.W.

CITY OR TOWN: STATE CODE

Washington i D1str1ct of Columbia.

As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na-
tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law

1 hereby certify that this property is included in the

89-665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion National Register.

in the National Register and certify that it has been s C
evaluated according to the criteria and procedures set { f A ) 171 ny

cine P At oo [0
forth by the Natlorga.«}”‘P?rk Servme 3l}he recommended
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7. Description (continued)

bay east of the altar. The chancel which is several steps higher than the
nave has tile flooring with religious symbols. The rest of the church except
the entrance vestibules has wooden floors. Each of the seven bays of the nave
and chancel have two hammer beam trusses, one with tie beams and one without,
The timber trusses of the aisles' roofs are also exposed,

The parish house wings have interesting interior features. The 1894 wing
has exposed hammerbeam trusses as the dominate feature of its second floor
room, First floor features include vertical panelling to the dado, a massive
newel post, and panelled doors with reeded trim, The main room of the

twentieth century wing has exposed timber roof trussing while dormers provide
it with clerestory light.

GPO 921.724
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8. Significance - St. Mark's Church

Between 1940 and 1950 St. Mark's faced new problems as members moved to the
suburbs and resources dwindled. Many of the newer residents of the Capitol
Hill area had no relation to the church at all, TIn 1954, a number of church-
men determined to revitalize the church, rather than let it be closed. To do
so, they turned to the Capitol Hill community, seeking ways to serve life as
they found it there and so restore the parish's life.

It is this note of openness to the community which now characterizes the
church, Some programs, such as a ministry to the deaf, first begun in the
Nazareth Chapel, are still in operation. A separate congregation, St. Barnabas
Mission to the Deaf, worships now in a basement chapel, while other ministries,
such as Head Start and pastoral counseling are of more recent date.

7. Description -~ St. Mark's Church

and as a part of the A Street facade increases the vertical impact of the 58'
height of the nave. On this main facade the cornice of the east aisle bay
follows the slope of the aisle's shed roof. The doorway in this bay does not
have the fanlights found over the doorways of the tower. A brick archway forms
the east bay of the A Street facade.

The wings are red brick and in material and scale harmonize with the
sanctuary. The two story wing added in 1894 is approximately 25" by 40', 1Its
gable ended north facade has irregular bays. The west entrance bay has a
chimney which abuts the aisle wall and has a single pitch rodf. The 1926=-27
oneistory addition has a gable roof broken by five shed dormers., Its ridge
pole is at the same height as that of the 1894 wing. Buttresses divide the
north facade of this wing into five bays. The most western bay has three
windows while other bays have two windows except the center bay which is a pro-
jecting porch with its own gable roof, The east facade of the wing faces an
alley. It has three windows and a niche in the gable. Attached to the rear
(south) is a kitchen wing with a lower roofline.

The interior of St. Mark's is distinguished by its clarity of expression
and effective use of exposed structural materials. The red brick give texture
and color, Twelve cast iron columns support round arches carrying the clere-
story. . These columns and the exposed timber framing of the roof add to the
feeling of spaciousness and lightness produced by the large number of windows
and lofty ceiling. Bands of terra cotta tiles, bands of gray stone in the
altar wall, the stone altar, reredos, and baptismal font, and handsome stained
glass contribute to the total effect.

Originally the church had a three aisle plan but in 1966 pews were re-
moved and now movable chairs allow for a variety of seatingfarfaﬁggmehts. The
wrought iron rood screen which separates the two south bay@ibf thevaisles and
chancel from the rest of the sanctuary was not present ﬁjaﬁl§%7lphot0graph of
the church. Originally the vestry was located in the aigle bay Rdst 1973 the
altar which today is the chapel., Since 1894 an organ ha%feccg : e aisle

(Continued on Form 10-300a)
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ENTRIES IN THE NATIONAL REGISTER
DISTRICT OF COLUMEBIA

STATE
Date Entered MY 8 1973
Name Location
Mexridian Housa 1630 Crescent Place, N. W.
Internationsl Easturn Star 1618 Hew Hampshire Avenue, N.W,.
Temple
Rosedtiale 3501 Newark Street, N.W,
Kii, Bt. Mayk's Church, Capitol 3rd and A Btreats, S. E.
Hill
Residenca of UAR Interests 2301 Massachusetts Avenue, N.W.

{Beale, Joseph, Eousa)

Also Notified  gears Historis Preservation Officer
My, Janes G. Ranks

Room 112A, District Bullding

14th and B Btreets, N, W.
washington, D. C. 20004

Hon. Walter E. Fauntroy

Director, National Capital
Parks

PHR NRowland :mm 5/14/73
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